
Join us!  In an effort to enhance meetings post COVID-19 emergency 
orders, the City Council invites you to join and/or participate in a variety 
of ways:  Via computer Zoom meetings (no app is necessary), telephone, 

email and/or text!  See details on page 3. 

Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

April 25, 2022 
6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation – Huey J. Davis, Vestavia Hills Chaplain

4. Pledge Of Allegiance

5. Approval Of The Agenda

6. Announcements, Candidates and Guest Recognition

7. City Manager’s Report

8. Councilors’ Reports

9. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director

10. Approval Of Minutes – April 11, 2022 (Regular Meeting)

Old Business 

11. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3089 – Conditional Use Approval For A Veterinarian

Clinic With Services Such As Medical, Grooming And Bathing Services Located In The

Tenant Space Described As 1360 Montgomery Highway; Wade Cornelius, Vestridge

Commons Shopping Center, LLC (Owner)

12. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3090 – Conditional Use Approval For A Grooming

And Bathing Service For Dogs; David Ashford, Old Towne Center 33rd Street Holdings

LLC And Old Towne Center On Behalf Of Felicia Weston

13. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3091 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2433 Dolly

Ridge Road, Lot 35, Rocky Ridge Estates; Megan Rudolph, Owner

14. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3092 – Rezoning – 2433 Dolly Ridge Road, Lot 35,

Rocky Ridge Estates; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1,

Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Megan Rudolph, Owner

15. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3093 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 1718 Vestaview

Lane; John G. Moss, III, Owner



16. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3094 – Rezoning – 1718 Vestaview Lane; Rezone

From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2, Compatible Zoning For Annexation;

John G. Ross III, Owner

17. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5386 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager

To Offer A Relocation Reimbursement For The Recruitment Of A New Department Head

New Business 

18. Resolution Number 5387 – A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills 
Board Of Education

19. Ordinance Number 3096 – Annual Jefferson County Tax Levy Authorizing The Jefferson 
County Tax Assessor To Levy And Collect Municipal Taxes Pursuant To Alabama Law

20. Ordinance Number 3097 - Annual Shelby County Tax Levy Authorizing The Shelby 
County Tax Assessor To Levy And Collect Municipal Taxes Pursuant To Alabama Law

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

21. Citizens Comments

22. Time Of Adjournment



SPECIAL NOTICE CONCERNING CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
Due to the COVID-19 safety advice given by the ADPH, the City Council work sessions and 
meetings are available via video-conference and teleconference. If you choose not to attend 
in person, you may still participate. Following are instructions for three options to 
participate remotely. 
 
COMPUTER PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate in by videoconference, click https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5539517181. When the 
Zoom.us window opens in your browser, click “Allow” so that the page may open to a waiting 
room. The host will open the meeting and bring all into the meeting room at that time.  All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak 
during time(s) identified for public input, activate the “Raise Hand” feature and unmute yourself 
by toggling the mute button. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives you the floor, state your 
name and address for the record and then you may address the Council. 
 
Using the icons on the Zoom screen, you can:  

 Mute/unmute your microphone (far left)  
 Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”)  
 View Participants – opens a pop-out screen that includes the “Raise Hand” icon that you 

may use to raise a virtual hand  
 Change your screen name displayed in the participant list and video window  
 Toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” views – “Speaker view” shows the active 

speaker; “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants 
 
TELEPHONE PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate by telephone, dial 312.626.6799 and enter the meeting ID: 455 534 3275. All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, press *6 on your phone keypad to unmute yourself. Then state 
your name and wait for the Mayor to recognize you. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives 
you the floor, state your name and address for the record and then address the Council. 
 
 
TEXT AND/OR EMAIL (prior to the meeting or in real time) 
 
If you do not wish to join the meeting but would like to ask a question or make a statement 
regarding an item on the agenda, you may email the City Council directly at 
City.Council@vhal.org. You may also text your question/statement to City Council at 
205.517.1370. Both of these options are available prior to and during each work session and 
meeting. Be sure to provide your name and address for the record and your comments will be 
recited to the City Council as the corresponding item is being addressed. Note: As a matter of 
record, your name and address are required. If identification is not provided, your 
comment/question will not be presented. 



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

APRIL 11, 2022 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  A number of staff and members of 
the general public also attended virtually, via Zoom.com, following publication pursuant to 
Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order.  The City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem  
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul Head, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor 

 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney  

Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Shawn Jackson, Asst. Fire Chief 
Ryan Farrell, Asst. Fire Chief 
Chris Vines, Fire Marshall 
Jason Hardin, Deputy Police Chief 

 Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
 Zach Clifton, Chief Accountant 

Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Umang Patel, Court Director* 

       *present virtually via Zoom or telephone 
 

The Mayor led the invocation which was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion of approval of the agenda as presented.   
 
MOTION Motion to approve the agenda as presented was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce.  Roll call vote was, as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 2 
 

   Mayor Curry – yes  motion carried. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mrs. Cook announced the names of the 14 applicants for the upcoming vacancy of the 
Board of Education.  The following individuals applied:  Clayton Simien, Lynn Worley, 
Tyler Zinder, Kristin Boggs, Nicholas Adams, Jamie Aiken, Michael Vercher, Trey 
Woodruff, Christopher Ritchie, Jonathan Handey, Katie Dudley, Heinz Dueffer, Vinay 
Patel, and Christine McJunkin.  She stated that interviews will begin Tuesday and continue 
on Wednesday with a selection to be made at the April 25 regular meeting. 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Rachel Patterson, Sandra Cleveland, Clabe Dobbs, Chamber of 
Commerce Board members present representing the Chamber along with Chamber 
President, Karen Odle. 

 Mayor Curry announced that the City was accepting applications for the upcoming 
BJCTA Committee appointment.  He stated that he received two applications:  Paige 
Coker and Frank C. Leyden III.  The Council will meet these candidates and make a 
selection at the regularly scheduled Council Meeting on May 9. 

 Mr. Head announced that the Parks and Recreation Board will meet in work session on 
April 19, 2022 beginning at 5:30 PM. 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a Proclamation designating April 19, 2022, as a Day of Prayer and 
Thanksgiving.  Mr. Downes read the Proclamation and the Mayor presented it to Sandra 
Cleveland, BCR Wealth Strategies and current Chamber Board Chair; Clabe Dobbs, Progress 
Bank and Chamber of Commerce Community Affairs Chair; and Karen Odle, Chamber President. 
 
 Mrs. Cleveland thanked the Mayor and Council for the recognition and stated that they 
are very excited about the Prayer Breakfast this year. 
 

Mayor Curry invited everyone to participate in the Mayor’s Prayer breakfast and indicated 
that the keynote speaker will be Steve Skipper, a Homewood Navy veteran with an inspiring 
story.  He stated that he became an accomplished artist following a background of being part of 
a street gang. 
 
 

RECOGNITION 
 
 Chief Marvin Green explained that he wanted to give recognition to some fire personnel 
who assisted in making the City’s Fire Department an ISO 1 fire department.  Recognized were:  
Deputy Fire Chief Ryan Farrell; Battalion Chief Scott Ferrell, Battalion Chief Christian Elliott; 
Captain Chris Vines; Lieutenant Steven Michael, and Lieutenant Peyton Allen. 
 



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 3 
 

 Chief Green also indicated that this is the final meeting for Deputy Chief Shawn Jackson 
who is retiring this week.  He thanked Chief Jackson for his years of dedicated service. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes announced a new Department Head for the City.  He stated that after a 
thorough search, he has selected a new Parks and Recreation Director to lead the new 
Parks programs following the completion of the Community Spaces Plan.  He introduced 
Jamie Lee, the newest Director of Parks and Leader Services.  Mr. Downes stated that 
they anticipate him beginning work here in the month of May. 

o Mr. Lee thanked the City Manager and the Council for the trust they have instilled 
in him to lead in the new Parks programs and stated that he is looking forward to 
joining the Vestavia Hills family.  He stated that the bulk of his career has been 
coaching and teaching, but everyone works as a team.  The team can only be as 
good as its members. He stated he is looking forward to getting to know the Parks 
and Recreation team. 

 Mr. Downes announced that City Hall will be closed on Friday, April 15, 2022 in 
observance of Good Friday.  He wished everyone a Happy Easter. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that, given the large number of Board of Education applications, 
interview scheduling will need to be rearranged. The times will be posted soon. 

 Mr. Pierce announced that he will be attending the Chamber of Commerce luncheon 
tomorrow.  Mr. Downes will be the keynote speaker at the event. 

 Mayor Curry stated that the Legislature met in its final days last week and finished the 
session.  He stated that, during that session, he became aware of a proposed SB203 which, 
if passed, would have been detrimental to the City, and especially the Municipal Court.  
The bill, as written, would have taken away the City’s choice of software.  Because of 
some wrong-doings in another city, the intent of the bill would be to require cities to report 
information.  Unfortunately, the way it was written, it would have penalized cities by 
taking away their third-party software vendors.  He commended two city employees, 
Rebecca Leavings and Umang Patel, for aiding in fighting the bill.  He stated that they 
sounded the warning and then partnered with the Mayor to get things changed.  The Mayor 
enlisted State Rep. David Faulkner to get an amendment approved that would allow cities 
to keep their pre-existing software.  This bill amendment was accepted by the Senate and 
passed with the amendment.  He said Vestavia Hills and Hoover led the way on this 
amendment.  He also commended State Sen. Jabo Waggoner, State Rep. Dan Roberts, 
State Rep. Jim Carns and, especially, State Rep. David Faulkner for their assistance.   

 Mr. Weaver stated that our representatives and senators continue to help the city 
during each and every session. 

 Mr. Weaver reported that the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting is Thursday, 
April 14, 2022. 

 



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 4 
 

 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND COMMUNITY SPACES UPDATE 

 
 Raynor Boles, TCU, gave updates on the following: 

 Crosshaven Drive:  Every utility conflict is out of the way and now they can devise a 
schedule and know when each portion will be done.  He stated that the County portion 
is lining up and the contractor will be done with Crosshaven, altogether, within a few 
months. 

 Civic Center:  He stated that the tile and plumbing are making good progress.  The 
Gym flooring is being installed.  The bridge is erected and the painting is 90% 
completed.  He stated right now they are focusing on quality over timing to ensure the 
finishes are being done correctly.  He stated they are targeting this summer for 
completion. 

 Wald Park:  Phase 2 is completed including shade structures; drainage and utility 
infrastructure is 95% completed.  He stated that, at strategic planning, the Council 
concurred on a $3.5 million budget for Phase III. They are value-engineering that job 
to get to the right numbers by narrowing the scope. They hope to begin construction 
during the summer when there is no school traffic.  There will be two ADA-accessible 
areas out of four areas (for a total of four courts).  He stated that the lighting of the 
park is one significant part of value-engineering that needs to be discussed.  Musco 
Lighting is the best of the best.  He stated that the City can save significant money to 
go to a lower class of lighting. He explained that, because the courts are so close to 
residential housing, it is beneficial to reduce lighting levels, but that this would be a 
choice that the Council can make to provide adequate lighting for tournament play.  
There will be other a la carte items that will come to the Council soon to determine 
the best ways to reduce project cost.  Mr. Weaver asked for information on these 
choices.  Mrs. Cook asked how this will impact the bidding.  Mr. Boles stated that 
they limit the subs because these are not structures that need multiple subs. 

 New Merkel:  TCU used some of the excess funds from the project to stabilize the dog 
park with some turf and raise it to the level of quality of the rest of the park. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The Mayor stated that the approval of the March 28, 2022 (Regular Meeting) was needed 
and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the minutes of the March 28, 2022 (Regular Meeting) was made 

by Mrs. Cook and second was by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – abstained  motion carried. 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 5 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5381 
 

Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5381 - Annexation – 90 Day – 2245 And 2249 Blue 
Ridge Blvd; Request For Annexation And Development Of 25 Townhomes; 
Taylor Burton And Donald And Alicia Huey, Owners 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5381 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that this came to the Annexation Committee meeting several months 
ago.  The number has been reduced to 25 homes from the original 38 homes. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that the engineering was updated and will be vetted during the rezoning 
process. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that originally the school board did have some concerns. 
 
 Taylor Burton, developer, stated that the townhomes should start in the lower $400s.  
Housing of this type generally attracts younger professionals and this is a good site for this type 
of resident.  There will be basement parking which generally does not attract older adults.  Mr. 
Burton stated that this type of home is not conducive for families with young children.  These 
will be owner-occupied. 
 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote was as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5382 
 

Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5382 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager 
To Accept A Proposal For Acquisition Of Rights-Of-Way And Temporary 
Construction Easements For Project CMAQ-7030(600) Massey Road 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5382 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Weaver. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that ALDOT recommended some experts in the field in order to 
resolve some problems in obtaining needed ROW and construction easements. This approval will 
help get the Massey Road project moving per the Council’s direction at strategic planning.   
 



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 6 
 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote was as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5383 
 

Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5383 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager 
To Obtain Certain Professional Services Regarding Land Survey, 
Geotechnical Investigation, Landscape Design, Etc., For Altadena Valley 
Park In Preparation Of A Master Plan, Grading For An Access Road And 
Construction Of A Restroom Facility And Pavilion 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5383 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that Shelby County will construct certain facilities in this park if the 
City obtains this engineering information beforehand. 
 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote was as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3083 
 

Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3083 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The 
Mayor And City Manager To Execute And Deliver A Memorandum Of 
Understanding Between The City Of Childersburg, Alabama And The City 
Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama For The Development Of A Plan And The 
Preparation Of A Contract For The Implementation Of A Collaborative Use 
Of Land For A Public Safety Firing/Training Range By The Police 
Departments Of Both Cities 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3083 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mrs. Cook. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a Memorandum of Understanding to begin formal planning 
of efforts for a training and shooting range.   
 



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 7 
 

 Mr. Pierce asked about Sylacauga using it also. 
 
 Capt. Hardin stated that he believes that Sylacauga has one already and they wanted to 
keep this small for just these two cities at this time.  
 
 Mr. Boone indicated he has reviewed the documents and had extensive conversations with 
Sgt. Richardson on this memorandum.  He stated that this is a large remote property and would 
be great for this training. 
 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote was as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3095 
 

Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3095 - An Ordinance Adopting And Enacting 
Supplement IV For The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances, Republished 
2013 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3095 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is an update to the City’s code of ordinances. 
 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote was as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5384 
 

Resolution Number 5384 – A Resolution Accepting the 2020-2021 Audit for the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5379 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 8 
 

Jason Harpe, Carr Riggs and Ingram, summarized the City’s financial audit. He stated that 
the Council has the full audit along with some simple financial charts showing the City’s 10-year 
financial history.  He stated that the City has 160 days of operations funded.  He indicated that is 
well above the recommended 90 days.  He explained what is new in the GATSB representing 
custodial funds.  The City has two funds in this category: (1) monies that come through the City 
to the Board of Education which is a pass-thru; and (2) car tag sales.  He stated before it was 
netted but now is showing in the financials even with a zero impact.  The audit report was an 
unmodified opinion.  He mentioned the post-employment benefit obligation in which they 
recommend a trust to help to alleviate this obligation which eases up each year.  He commended 
the Finance Department for their work. 

 
There being no one to address the Council, the he closed the public hearing and called for 

the question.  Roll call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5385 
 

Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5385 – A Resolution Authorizing The Installation Of 
A New Support Structure For A Small Cell Facility To Be Located In The 
Right-Of-Way Of The Following Properties: (1) 2345 Columbiana Road; (2) 
1624 Belvedere Drive; (3) 2645 Manchester Court; (4) 3256 Wisteria Drive; 
And (5) 3309 Shallowford Road 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5385 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
Mr. Downes explained that this is a request for five additional poles to be constructed in 

the City in various areas.  He stated that Ms. Love, Crowne Castle, is attending virtually to answer 
any questions. 

 
Mr. Pierce asked if this supports small-cell technology. 
 
Mr. Downes explained. 
 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
Discussion ensued with residents of Manchester Court relative to why are the poles so 

close together as there is another about 400’ away from this proposed pole and why it couldn’t be 
located on the opposite side of Columbiana Road. 

 
Mike Isaac, Crowne Castle, explained that some poles are not able to be used for this 

technology.  He stated that these two poles are line-of-sight and the proximity requires that 



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 9 
 

location.  He stated that the narrow right-of-way and the highlines across Columbiana Road 
prevented the location on that side. 

 
There being no one else to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 

called for the question.  Roll call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – abstained  
   Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3089 – Conditional Use Approval For A Veterinarian 
Clinic With Services Such As Medical, Grooming And Bathing Services Located In The 
Tenant Space Described As 1360 Montgomery Highway; Wade Cornelius, Vestridge 
Commons Shopping Center, LLC (Owner) 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3090 – Conditional Use Approval For A Grooming 
And Bathing Service For Dogs; David Ashford, Old Towne Center 33rd Street Holdings 
LLC And Old Towne Center On Behalf Of Felicia Weston 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3091 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2433 Dolly Ridge 
Road, Lot 35, Rocky Ridge Estates; Megan Rudolph, Owner 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3092 – Rezoning – 2433 Dolly Ridge Road, Lot 35, 
Rocky Ridge Estates; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1, 
Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Megan Rudolph, Owner 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3093 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 1718 Vestaview 
Lane; John G. Moss, III, Owner 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3094 – Rezoning – 1718 Vestaview Lane; Rezone 
From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2, Compatible Zoning For Annexation; 
Megan Rudolph, Owner 

 Public Hearing – Resolution Number 3086 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager 
To Offer A Relocation Reimbursement For The Recruitment Of A New Department Head 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
 At 6:22 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:23 PM. 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
April 11, 2022 

Page 10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3089 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3089 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR A VETERINARY HOSPITAL 

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 re-establishing a Zoning Code 

for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, Wade Cornelius, Vestridge Commons Shopping Center LLC, has 

submitted application for conditional use approval for veterinary hospital including 

grooming, bathing services and veterinarian care operated from tenant space in the 

Vestridge Commons Shopping Center, more specifically in 1360 Montgomery Highway, 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Cornelius has indicated in his application for conditional use 

approval to allow the operation of a veterinarian clinic with services such as medical, 

grooming and bathing services; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated January 11, 2022 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3089. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Vestridge Commons

Shopping Center, LLC for a veterinarian clinic with services such as medical,

grooming and bathing services located in the tenant space described as 1360

Montgomery Highway;

(1) Conditional use is hereby granted for operation of a veterinarian clinic

with services such as medical, grooming and bathing services; and

(2) Services shall be conducted by appointment, emergency and/or walk-in

only; and

(3) There shall be no overnight boarding of animals at any time except when

medically necessary; and

(4) A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon

application and payment by the proposed veterinary tenant working to

the rules and regulations outlined in the Vestavia Hills Business License



Ordinance Number 3089 
Page 2 

Code and shall be renewed each year that the veterinarian business 

is operated from the location at 1360 Montgomery Highway, 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

(5) At any time should the tenant vacate the premises, discontinue or

relocate the business and the use is removed from the property for 12-

months, this conditional use approval shall be nullified and said

Ordinance Number 3089 shall be automatically repealed

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3089 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of April, 2022 as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2022. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Date:     MARCH 10, 2022 

 CASE:  P-0322-04 

 REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for a Veterinary Clinic 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1360 Montgomery Hwy. 

 APPLICANT/OWNER:  Vestridge Commons Shopping Center, LLC 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant is seeking to establish a veterinary 
practice and pet grooming facility in the Vestridge Commons shopping center (Sol 
Azteca, Monograms Plus, Kool Korner, etc.). All services would be by appointment 
only M-Sa and no overnight boarding offered unless pets are required 24 
hour/overnight care. As per and agreement with the property owner, the greenspace 
behind the building would be fenced and utilized. A description of the applicant’s 
business is attached.  

 VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  This request is consistent with 
plan for commercial core. 

 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: Conditioned on no overnight boarding other
than what is required for medical care.

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



2 

With the Commission finding that the application met all nine criteria as defined in Section 
13.3.4 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Ordinance 

MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval for a 
veterinary clinic for 1360 Montgomery Hwy. with the following conditions: 

1. Overnight boarding of animals is prohibited unless medically necessary.
Second was by Mr. Larson. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Honeycutt – yes Mr. Farrell – yes 
Mr. Weaver – yes  Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Sykes – yes  Mr. Vercher– yes 
Motion carried. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



EXPLANATION/RATIONALE FOR REQUEST 

The proposed Heartland Veterinary hospital (the “Project”) will operate a veterinary clinic (the “Proposed 
Use”) solely from the 4,600 square feet lease space located within the Vestridge Commons Shopping Center 
(the “Shopping Center”) located at 1360 Montgomery Highway in Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as legally 
described on the attached Exhibit A and as depicted on the vicinity sketch attached as Exhibit A. All tenant 
improvements for the Project will occur within the existing building but shall include the addition of an 
outdoor pet relief area (as shown on the attached Exhibit C). 

GENERAL PLAN CONFORMANCE  

The Proposed Use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Vestavia Hills (the “Plan”) 
and advances “Goal Four” of Chapter II which provides that the City shall strive to “encourage greater 
economic development with the City to serve residents and expand the City’s tax base;” “encourage an 
appropriate mix of uses in commercial areas and throughout the City;” and “recruit desirable retail 
businesses into appropriate locations throughout the City.”  

The Project and Proposed Use will serve the needs of pets and residents of the City; contribute to economic 
sustainability by way of job creation and an addition of a commercial tenant to a currently vacant 
commercial building space; and enhance the mix of uses in the City. 

SPECIFIC JUSTIFICATIONS FOR APPROVAL  

1. The Proposed Use is consistent with the City’s zoning code  (the “Code”) designation for
the property, which is B-2 (Neighborhood Mix Use District). The Proposed Use is currently conditionally 
permitted in B-2. The Proposed Use is an appropriate use for B-2 since it is consistent with other uses found 
in the B-2 districts and provides a complementary balance of land uses throughout the community meeting 
the needs of existing residents and businesses.  

a. The Project will be staffed by receptionists, veterinary assistants, veterinary
technicians and one (1) or two (2) veterinarians at any one time. The Project will have approximately 6 to 
8 employees working Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., and Saturday from 8:00 a.m. to 
12:00 p.m. The Project anticipates the business to receive two office calls an hour and three walk-in 
customers per hour on average. With the proposed operational characteristics of the Project in connection 
with the Proposed Use (including reasonable hours of operation and all proposed activities conducted 
indoors with the exception of supervised time in the outdoor pet area), the Shopping Center would provide 
adequate on-site parking and therefore the Project would not substantially impact on-street parking or the 
parking or uses on other adjacent properties.  

b. The Proposed Use would not generate adverse noise, traffic, or parking impacts
that are unusual for commercially-zoned properties. Residential uses would be protected from any noise or 
nuisance associated with the Project because they are buffered from the subject property by sufficient 
distance and public streets. With the exception of the outdoor relief area, all animal hospital activities shall 
occur inside the building. The Project would solely offer overnight boarding of animals in the event of a 
sick animal or surgery requiring overnight stay. 

2. The Proposed Use is compatible with the uses in the surrounding area. The Proposed Use
would be compatible and harmonious with developments in the same general area and would not be 
materially detrimental to other properties within the area. The Project would operate with minimal impact 
on surrounding properties and uses. Pursuant to Section 7.6.2 of the Code, the outdoor pet relief area shall 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



be located to the rear of the building and all such areas visible from a public right-of-way shall be 
enclosed with a six (6) foot wooden privacy fence. 

3. The Proposed Use will not be materially detrimental to the health. safety and general
welfare of the public or otherwise injurious to property or improvements within the immediate 
neighborhood. Pursuant to Section 7.6.3 of the Code, all waste material at the Project be stored in closed 
containers and screened as required in Section 9.4; and pursuant to Section 7.6.4 there will be no emission 
of any offensive odors, beyond the Project’s lot line. 

CONCLUSION 

Approval of the Project and Proposed Use will allow a veterinary hospital (Heartland Veterinary) with 
veterinary services, emergency or medically-necessitated pet boarding, and ancillary outdoor use in the B-
2 zone. The Project and Proposed Use are consistent with the Plan, Code and with developments in the 
general neighborhood. Therefore, we respectfully request the approval of this Conditional Use Application. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



EXHIBIT A 

(Legal Description) 

Tract I: 

A parcel of land situated in the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 31, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West of the Huntsville Principal Meridian, being a portion of Lots 9, 10, and 11, Block 6, lying Northwesterly 
of State Highway No. 31, of the First Addition to Shades Park, as recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 22, in the 
Jefferson County Judge of Probate Office, the bearings of which are based on assumed datum, and being more 
particularly described as follows: Begin at a Jimmy Gay capped iron rod marking the Northwest corner of said 
Lot 11, and run South 85 degrees 52 minutes 47 seconds East 320.36 feet along the North line thereof to the 
common corner of said Lots 10 and 11; said point being marked by a Jimmy Gay capped iron rod; thence South 
85 degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds East 356.59 feet along the North lines of said Lots 10 & 9 to intersection with 
the Northwesterly right-of-way line of said State Highway No. 31; said point being marked by a Jimmy Gay 
capped iron rod; thence run along said right- of-way line for the following four (4) courses; 1) South 48 degrees 
56 minutes 51 seconds West 229.22 feet to a concrete right-of-way monument; 2) Southwesterly 238.35 feet 
along the arc of a curve, concave to the Southeast, having a central angle of 01 degrees 10 minutes 09 seconds a 
radius of 11679.16 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 48 degrees 21 minutes 47 seconds West and 
238.34 feet to an iron set; 3) South 00 degrees 45 minutes 45 seconds East 26.78 feet to a concrete right-of-way 
monument; 4) Southwesterly 293.08 feet along the arc of a curve, concave to the Southeast, having a central 
angle of 01 degrees 27 minutes 10 seconds, a radius of 11559.16 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 
47 degrees 02 minutes 42 seconds West and 293.07; thence North 31 degrees 48 minutes 01 seconds West 208.57 
feet to intersection with the West line of said Lot 11; thence North 00 degrees 01 minutes 22 seconds West 406.84 
feet along said West line to the Point of Beginning. 

Tract II: 20 foot permanent utility easement 

A 20.00 foot easement for the purpose of utilities, situated in the Northwest ¼ and the Southwest ¼ of Section 
31, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, of the Huntsville Principal Meridian, running across the portions of Lots 
11,13 and 14, Block 6, of the First Addition to Shades Park, as recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 22, in the Judge of 
Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama, said easement being 10.00 feet each side of the following described 
centerline, the sidelines of which are to be extended or shortened to coincide with a line that bears North 31 
degrees 48 minutes 01 seconds West and the West line of said Lot 13, the bearings of which are based on assumed 
datum and being more particularly described as follows: Commence at a Jimmy Gay capped iron rod marking 
the Northwest corner of said Lot 11, and run South 85 degrees 52 minutes 47 seconds East 320.36 feet along the 
North line thereof to the common corner of said Lots 10 and 11; said point being marked by a Jimmy Gay capped 
iron rod; thence South 85 degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds East 356.59 feet along the North lines of said Lots 10 
& 9 to intersection with the Northwesterly right-of-way line of said State Highway No. 31; said point being 
marked by a Jimmy Gay capped iron rod; thence run along said right-of-way line for the following four (4) 
courses; 1) South 48 degrees 56 minutes 51 seconds West 229.22 feet to a concrete right-of-way monument; 2) 
Southwesterly 238.35 feet along the arc of a curve, concave to the Southeast, having a central angle of 01 degrees 
10 minutes 09 seconds a radius of 11679.16 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 48 degrees 21 
minutes 47 seconds West and 238.34 feet to an iron set 3) South 00 degrees 45 minutes 45 seconds East 26.78 
feet to a concrete right-of-way monument; 4) Southwesterly 293.08 feet along the arc of a curve, concave to the 
Southeast, having a central angle of 01 degrees 27 minutes 10 seconds a radius of 11559.16 feet, and a chord 
bearing and distance of South 47 degrees 02 minutes 42 seconds West and 293.07 feet; thence North 31 degrees 
48 minutes 01 seconds West 10.22 feet to the Point of Beginning of the easement herein described; thence 
running parallel and 10.00 feet Northwesterly measuring at right angles of said right of way line for the following 
two (2) courses: 1) Southwesterly 543.99 feet along the arc of a curve, concave to the Southeast, having a central 
angle of 02 degrees 41 minutes 39 seconds, a radius of 11569.16 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 
44 degrees 58 minutes 56 seconds West and 543.94 feet; 2) South 43 degrees 38 minutes 06 seconds West 11.48 
feet to a point that is on the projected North line of Lot 1, of Corrected Map of East Sector Vestavia Forest, as 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



recorded in Plat Book 47, Page 26, in the Judge of Probate Office, Jefferson County, Alabama; thence North 90 
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 33.88 feet to intersection with the West line of said Lot 13 and the Point of 
Termination of said easement. 

Tract III: Easement for Encroachments 

An easement for encroachments and construction related activities, situated in the Northwest ¼ and the 
Southwest ¼ of Section 31, Township 18 South, Range 2 West of the Huntsville Principal Meridian, 
running across portions of Lots 11, 12, 13, and 14, Block 6, of the First Addition to Shades Park, as 
recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 22, in the Judge of Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama; the 
bearings of which are based on assumed datum and being more particularly described as follows: 
Commence at a Jimmy Gay capped iron rod marking the Northwest corner of said Lot 11 and run South 
85 degrees 52 minutes 47 seconds East 320.36 feet along the North line thereof to the common corner of 
said Lots 10 and 11; said point being marked by a Jimmy Gay capped iron rod; thence South 85 degrees 
51 minutes 58 seconds East 356.59 feet along the North lines of said Lots 10 & 9 to intersection with the 
Northwesterly right-of-way line of State Highway No. 31; said point being marked by a Jimmy Gay 
capped iron rod; thence run along said right-of-way line for the following four (4) courses; 1) South 48 
degrees 56 minutes 51 seconds West 229.22 feet to a concrete right-of-way monument; 2) 
Southwesterly 238.35 feet along the arc of a curve, concave to the Southeast, having a central angle of 
01 degrees 10 minutes 09 seconds a radius of 11679.16 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 
48 degrees 21 minutes 47 seconds West and 238.34 feet to an iron set; 3) South 00 degrees 45 minutes 
45 seconds East 26.78 feet to a concrete right-of-way monument; 4) Southwesterly 293.08 feet along the 
arc of a curve, concave to the Southeast, having a central angle of 01 degrees 27 minutes 10 seconds, a 
radius of 11559.16 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 47 degrees 02 minutes 42 seconds 
West and 293.07 feet to the Point of Beginning of the easement herein described; thence continue along 
said right-of-way line Southwesterly 180.82 feet along the arc of a curve, concave to the Southeast, 
having a central angle of 00 degrees 53 minutes 47 seconds, a radius of 11559.16 feet, and a chord 
bearing and distance of South 45 degrees 52 minutes 14 seconds West and 180.82 to a point that is 
20.00 feet West of the prolongation of the West line of said Lot 11; thence leaving said right-of-way line 
and running 20.00 feet West and parallel with the West line of said Lot 11, North 00 degrees 01 minute 
22 seconds West 441.48 feet; thence North 89 degrees 58 minutes 38 seconds East 20.00 feet to 
intersection with the West line of said Lot 11; thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 22 seconds East along 
said West line 138.33 feet; thence South 31 degrees 48 minutes 01 seconds East 208.57 feet to the Point 
of Beginning. 

Tract IV: 

Together with rights acquired under that certain grant of easement for constructing, reconstructing, 
maintaining, and repairing a sanitary sewer line as granted in Volume 6593, Page 361 over the following 
described property: 
The North five (5) feet of Lot 1, according to the corrected map of Vestavia Forest, East Sector, as the 
same is recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, in Map Book 47, 
Page 26. 

Tract V: 

A parcel of land situated in the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 31, Township 18 South, 
Range 2 West of the Huntsville Principal Meridian being a portion of Lots 11 and 12, Block 6, lying 
Northwest of U.S. Highway No. 31 of the First Addition to Shades Park, as recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 
22, in the Jefferson County Judge of Probate Office, being more particularly described as follows: 
Commence at a Jimmy Gay capped iron rod marking the Northwest corner of said Lot 11, run in a 
Southerly direction along the West line of said Lot 11 for a distance of 348.94 feet to an existing iron 
rebar set by Weygand being the point of beginning; thence turn an angle to the right of 46°59’04" and 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



run in a Southwesterly direction for a distance of 32.68 feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand being the 
point of beginning of a curve, said curve being concave in an Easterly direction, having a central angle of 
74°55’22" and a radius of 60.50 feet; thence turn an angle to the left (52°32’02" to the chord of said curve) and 
run in a Southwesterly, Southerly and Southeasterly direction along the arc of said curve for a distance of 79.11 
feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand being the point of ending of said curve; thence run in a Southeasterly 
direction along a line tangent to the end of said curve for a distance of 96.33 feet to an existing iron rebar set by 
Weygand; thence turn an angle to the left of 90° and run in a Northeasterly direction for a distance of 15.55 feet 
to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the left of 78°42’53" and run in a Northwesterly 
direction for a distance of 114.67 feet to an existing iron rebar set by Arrington; thence turn an angle to the right 
of 31°43’32" and run in a Northerly direction along the West line of said Lot 11 for a distance of 57.84 feet, 
more or less, to the point of beginning. 

Tract VI: 

Together with a non-exclusive reciprocal easement for access as set forth in the Declaration of Easements, 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions by and between Vestridge Commons Shopping Center, L.L.C., CK 
Enterprises, LLC and L. Lance Kitchens recorded as Instrument No. 200602/3288. 

Surveyors Description as to Tracts I and V: 

A parcel of land as described in Instrument Number 200205-5682 and Instrument Number 201413-16656 as 
recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, lying in the NW1/4 of Section 31, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, and being more particularly described as follows: 

BEGIN AT A 5/8" capped rebar (SAIIA) found marking the Southeast corner of Lot 2A as shown on a plat of 
"Resurvey of Lots 1 & 2 of Cobble Hill" as recorded in Map Book 228, Page 47 in said Office of Judge of 
Probate; thence run S 87°05’29" E for a distance of 457.66 feet to 5/8" capped rebar (SAIIA) found marking the 
Southwest corner of Lot 25 as shown on a plat of "Cobble Hill Survey" as recorded in Map Book 221, Page 45 
in said Office of Judge of Probate; thence run S 87°14’05" E for a distance of 181.62 feet to a 5/8" capped rebar 
(Jim Gay 8759) found marking the Northeast corner of said parcel of land as described in Instrument Number 
200205-5682, and along the Northwesterly right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 31/Montgomery Highway (a 
variable width public right-of-way); thence run S 47°41’16" W along said right-of-way for a distance of 229.22 
feet to a 5/8" rebar found (Weygand) on a curve having a radius of 11676.16 feet, a chord bearing of S 46°51’19" 
W, a chord length of 238.11 feet; thence along said right-of-way and along said arc for a distance of 238.34 feet 
to a 5/8" rebar (Weygand); thence along said right-of-way, run S 01°54’51" E fora distance of 26.86 feet to a 
found pk nail on a curve having a radius of 11559.16 feet, a chord bearing of S 45°37’59" W, a chord length of 
293.11 feet; thence along said right-of-way and along said arc for a distance of 293.08 feet to a 5/8" rebar found 
(Weygand); thence leaving said right-of-way, run N32°38’07" W for a distance of 94.57 feet to a set 1. pipe 
found; thence run S 46°06’40" W for a distance of 16.03 feet to a found 5/8" capped rebar (Weygand); thence 
run N 48°59’45" W for a distance of 96.33 feet to a set 5/8" rebar on a curve having a radius of 60.50 feet, a 
chord bearing of N 02°53’13" W, a chord length of 78.06 feet, thence along said arc for a distance of 84.84 feet 
to a found 5/8" capped rebar (Weygand); thence run N 43°57’42" E for a distance of 33.78 feet to a set 5/8" 
rebar; thence run N 01°23’40" W for a distance of 348.94 feet to a set 5/8" rebar on the South line of said Lot 
2A; thence run S 87°05’29" E along said South line for a distance of 37.67 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Said described parcel of land contains 4.98 acres, more or less. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



EXHIBIT “B” 

Vicinity Sketch 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



Vestridge Commons/Heartland Veterinary Lease Agreement Page 40 of 40 

EXHIBIT “ ” 

PET RELIEF AREA 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 1389



Ordinance Number 3090 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3090 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR A DOG GROOMING BUSINESS 

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 re-establishing a Zoning Code 

for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, David Ashford, Old Towne Center 33rd Street Holdings LLC and Old 

Towne Center on behalf of Felicia Weston, has submitted application for conditional use 

approval for the grooming and bathing services of dogs operated from tenant space in the 

Old Towne Center, more specifically in 220 Old Towne Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama; 

and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Weston has indicated in the application for conditional use 

approval to allow the operation of a grooming and bathing service for dogs; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated January 31, 2022 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3090. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Old Towne Center for a

grooming and bathing dog service to be located in the tenant space described as

220 Old Towne Road;

(1) Conditional use is hereby granted for operation of a dog grooming and

bathing service; and

(2) Services shall be conducted by appointment and/or walk-in only; and

(3) There shall be no overnight boarding of animals at any time; and

(4) A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon

application and payment by the proposed veterinary tenant working to

the rules and regulations outlined in the Vestavia Hills Business License

Code and shall be renewed each year that the veterinarian business is

operated from the location at 220 Old Towne Road, Vestavia Hills,

Alabama; and



Ordinance Number 3090 
Page 2 

 

(5) At any time should the tenant vacate the premises, discontinue or 

relocate the business and the use is removed from the property for 12-

months, this conditional use approval shall be nullified and said 

Ordinance Number 3090 shall be automatically repealed 

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2022. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3090 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of April, 2022 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     MARCH 10, 2022 
 

 CASE:  P-0322-07 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for dog grooming  
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  220 Old Towne Rd. 
 

 APPLICANT/OWNER:  Old Town Center 33rd Street Holdings, LLC & Old Town 
Center 131 West 33rd Street Holdings, LLC 

 
 GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant is seeking to establish a pet grooming 

facility in the Olde Towne hopping center. All services would be by appointment only 
and no overnight boarding offered. Typical appointments usually last less than 2 
hours. As per and agreement with the property owner, the greenspace behind the 
building would be utilized. A description of the applicant’s business is attached.  

 
 VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  This request is consistent with 

plan for commercial core. 
 

 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation: Conditioned on no overnight boarding other 
than what is required for medical care. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3090



 2 

With the Commission finding that the application met all nine criteria as defined in Section 
13.3.4 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Ordinance 
 
MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval for a pet 
grooming at 220 Old Towne Rd. Second was by Mr. Larson. Motion was carried on a roll call; 
vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Honeycutt – yes   Mr. Farrell – yes           
Mr. Weaver – yes    Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Sykes – yes    Mr. Vercher– yes   
Motion carried. 
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3090



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3090



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3090



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3090



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3090



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3090



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3090



Ordinance Number 3091 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3091 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 20th day of December, 2021, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2433 Dolly Ridge Road 
Lot 35, Rocky Ridge Estates 
Megan Rudolph, Owner(s) 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 3091 
Page 2 

 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3091 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of April, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2433 Dolly Ridge Road Property Address

====>   $                                                            798,100  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$79,810.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$1,640.10 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$2,294.54 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$3,934.63
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$1,205.13
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$654.44 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$1,640.10 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$4,154.11 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$5,794.21 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3091



Ordinance Number 3092 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3092 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

2433 Dolly Ridge Road 
Lot 35 Rocky Ridge Estates 

Megan Rudolph, Owner 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of April, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3092 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3092 is a true and correct 
copy of such 25th day of April, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2022. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 3092 
Page 3 

 



1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Date:     MARCH 10, 2022 

 CASE:  P-0322-05 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2433 Dolly Ridge Rd. 

 APPLICANT/OWNER: Megan W. Rudolph 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Dolly Ridge Rd. from JC E-2 to VH R-1. Property was annexed overnight by 
Ordinance 3047 on 12/20/21.  

 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-1 to Vestavia 
Hills R-1 for the property located at 2433 Dolly Ridge Rd. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion 
was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Honeycutt – yes Mr. Farrell – yes 
Mr. Weaver – yes  Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Sykes – yes  Mr. Vercher– yes 
Motion carried. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3092



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3092



Ordinance Number 3093 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3093 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 10th day of January, 2022, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

1718 Vestaview Lane 
John G. Moss III, Owner(s) 

More Particularly Described as Follows: 

Part of the SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of Section 25, Township 18 South, Range 
3 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the southeast comer of said 1/4 1/4 section; thence west along 
the south line thereof a distance of 642.02 feet to the point of beginning of 
tract herein described, said point begin in the center of Rogers Road; thence 
continue west along said south line a distance of 100.01 feet; thence at an 
angle to the right of 88 degrees 53 minutes 30 seconds and run north a 
distance of 178.91 feet; thence at an angle to the right of 90 degrees 55 
minutes and run a distance of l00.0 feet; thence at an angle to the right of 
89 degrees 05 minutes and run south a distance of 179.24 feet to the point 
of beginning. Less and except right of way over the south 15 feet. 



Ordinance Number 3093 
Page 2 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3093 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of April, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  1718 Vestaview Lane Property Address

====>   $                                                            283,200  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$28,320.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$581.98 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$814.20 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,396.18
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$427.63
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$232.22 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$581.98 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,474.06 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$2,056.03 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3093



Ordinance Number 3094 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3094 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST 
AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING 
OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA 
HILLS R-2 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class 

of district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 

(medium density residential) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

1718 Vestaview Lane 
John Moss III, Owner 

More Particularly Described as Follows: 

Part of the SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of Section 25, Township 18 South, Range 3 West, 
Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the southeast comer of said 1/4 1/4 section; thence west along the 
south line thereof a distance of 642.02 feet to the point of beginning of tract herein 
described, said point begin in the center of Rogers Road; thence continue west 
along said south line a distance of 100.01 feet; thence at an angle to the right of 88 
degrees 53 minutes 30 seconds and run north a distance of 178.91 feet; thence at 
an angle to the right of 90 degrees 55 minutes and run a distance of l00.0 feet; 
thence at an angle to the right of 89 degrees 05 minutes and run south a distance 
of 179.24 feet to the point of beginning. Less and except right of way over the 
south 15 feet. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of April, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3094 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3094 is a true and correct 
copy of such 25th day of April, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2022. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 3094 
Page 3 

 



1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Date:     MARCH 10, 2022 

 CASE:  P-0322-06 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1718 Vestaview Ln. 

 APPLICANT/OWNER: John Glenn Moss, III 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Vestaview Ln. from JC R-1 to VH R-2. Property was annexed overnight by 
Ordinance 3050 on 12/20/21.  

 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC R-1 to Vestavia 
Hills R-2 for the property located at 1718 Vestaview Ln. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Honeycutt – yes Mr. Farrell – yes 
Mr. Weaver – yes  Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Sykes – yes  Mr. Vercher– yes 
Motion carried. 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3094



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3094



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5386 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO OFFER A 
RELOCATION REIMBURSEMENT FOR THE RECRUITMENT OF A 
NEW DEPARTMENT HEAD 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills is in the process of recruiting a new department 

head in a key area of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has negotiated a relocation reimbursement package that he 

feels is needed for said recruitment in an amount not to exceed $7,500; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best interest to accept the City 

Manager’s recommendation. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to offer a relocation reimbursement in an amount

not to exceed $7,500 for recruitment of said department head; and

2. This Resolution Number 5386 shall be effective upon adoption and approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2022.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5387 

Page 1

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5387 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER OF THE 
VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR A 
TERM OF FIVE YEARS  

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Section 11-16-3, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council shall appoint members of the City Board of Education to serve for a term of five 

(5) years; and

WHEREAS, the five-year term of Steve Bendall as a member of the Vestavia Hills 

Board of Education expires in June 2022; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Council does hereby elect and appoint _________________ as a

member of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education for a term of five (5) years, beginning 

with the first regularly scheduled meeting of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education in June 

2022 at 4:00 PM on the date of the first regularly scheduled meeting of the Board in June 

and ending at 4:00 PM on the date of the first regularly scheduled meeting of the Board in 

June of the year 2027; and 

2. This Resolution shall become effective upon the approval and adoption by the

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

RESOLVED, DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, on this the 

25th day of April, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3096 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 3011 PROVIDING 
FOR LEVYING OF MUNICIPAL TAXES FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AND FOR ASSESSMENT AND 
COLLECTION THEREOF. 

WITNESSETH THESE HISTORICAL RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, prior to November 15, 1982, the ad valorem tax rate of each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Jefferson County, Alabama, amounted to Eight and 21/100 Dollars ($8.21), which 

consisted of the following amounts: 

1. State of Alabama:  Sixty-five cents on each One $ 0.65 
Hundred dollars  ($100.00) of assessed value of 

 such property. 

2. Jefferson County:  One and  35/100  Dollars on 1.35 
each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of  the
assessed value of such property.

3. Jefferson County Schools:   Eighty-two    cents 0.82 
on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of
the assessed value of such property.

4. Special School District Tax:   Ninety-six  cents 0.96 
on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of
the assessed value of such property.

5. Special District Tax:  Fifty-five  cents  on  each 0.55 
One   Hundred   Dollars    ($100.00)    of    the
assessed value of such property.

6. Local General  Municipal  and  Special  Municipal 3.88 
School  Taxes:   Three   and   88/100
Dollars    on   each    One   Hundred   Dollars
($100.00)   of   the   assessed   value  of  such ___________ 
property.

 TOTAL $ 8.21 
and; 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 2 

 

 WHEREAS, prior to November 15, 1982, the aggregate locally approved millage 

for general municipal purposes and local school taxes of 38.8 mills (being at the rate of 

$3.88 per $100.00 of assessed value) consisted of the following: 

  General Municipal Purposes  10.275 
  Garbage Collection   10.275 
  West Elementary - Warrants    3.150 
  High School and Operations  15.100 
 
     TOTAL 38.800  and; 
 
 WHEREAS, all real property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, has been 

reappraised; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Tax Assessor of Jefferson County in 1982 certified to the City of 

Vestavia Hills that total assessed value increased from $42,983,320.00 in 1981 to 

$63,427,627.00 in 1982; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, pursuant to the authority granted 

by Constitutional Amendment Number 373 (Lid Bill) of the Constitution of Alabama 1901, 

adopted Ordinance Number 633 on November 15, 1982, which reduced the ad valorem tax 

rate by 7.8 mills ($0.78 per $100.00 of assessed value).  Following the enactment of 

Ordinance Number 633, the total millage rate consisted of the following separate taxes: 

1. State of Alabama:  Sixty-five cents on  each One  $ 0.65 
 Hundred dollars  ($100.00) of assessed value of 
 such property. 
 
2. Jefferson County:  One and  35/100  Dollars on   1.35 
 each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of  the  
 assessed value of such property. 
 
3. Jefferson County Schools:   Eighty-two    cents   0.82 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 
 the assess value of such property. 
 
4. Special School District Tax:   Ninety-six  cents   0.96 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 
 the assessed value of such property. 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 3 

 

5. Special District Tax:  Fifty-five  cents  on  each   0.55 
 One   Hundred   Dollars    ($100.00)    of    the 
 assessed value of such property. 
 
6. Local General  Municipal  and  Special  Municipal   3.10 
 School Taxes:   Three   and   10/100 
 Dollars    on   each    One   Hundred   Dollars 
 ($100.00)   of   the   assessed   value  of  such  ___________ 
 property. 
   TOTAL $ 7.43 
 
After the adoption of Ordinance Number 633, the aggregate locally approved millage for 

general municipal purposes and local school district taxes of 31.0 mills (being at the rate 

of $3.10 per $100.00 of assessed value) consisted of the following: 

  General Municipal Purposes  0.821 
  Garbage Collection   0.821 
  West Elementary - Warrants  0.252 
  High School and Operations  1.206 
 
     TOTAL 3.100  and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Board of Education unanimously adopted a 

resolution requesting that the ad valorem tax millage for education purposes be returned to 

the pre-November 15, 1982, rates by reinstating the 3.7 mills (.37 per $100.00 of assessed 

value) as follows: 

 West Elementary Warrants from   2.52 to   3.15 
 High School & Operations from 12.06 to 15.10; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said resolution was presented to the City Council on February 4, 

1985; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 11, 1985, on the issue of 

whether or not to reinstate the 3.7 mills for the benefit of the Vestavia Hills Board of 

Education; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Board of Education has requested the City Council 

to return the ad valorem millage tax rates that affect the Vestavia Hills School System to 

those rates in force and effective immediately prior to the adoption of Ordinance Number 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 4 

 

633 on November 15, 1982, by reinstating Thirty-Seven Cents ($0.37) on each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of property so that the rates when adjusted 

will be as follows: 

1. The 12.06 High School mills ($1.206 on each $100.00 of assessed value) be 
adjusted to 15.1 mills ($1.51 on each $100.00 of assessed value). 

 
2. The 2.52 West Elementary mills ($0.252 on each $100.00 of assessed value) be 

adjusted to 3.15 mills ($0.315 on each $100.00 of assessed value); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, agreed to 

approve the request of the Board of Education by reinstating the 3.7 mills ($0.37 per 

$100.00 of assessed value).  The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

approved and adopted Ordinance Number 744 on February 18, 1985, which said Ordinance 

provided, among other things, as follows: 

1. Reinstatement of 3.7 mills (0.37 on each One Hundred dollars of assessed value). 
 
2. Established that the aggregate local millage for general municipal purposes and 

local school district tax rates are Three and 47/100 Dollars ($3.47) per One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of said property. 

 
3. That the $3.47 local millage consists of the following: 
  (a) General Municipal Purposes  0.823 
  (b) Garbage Collection   0.823 
  (c) West Elementary - Warrants  0.315 
  (d) High School and Operations  1.510 
      TOTAL 3.470   and; 
 
4. The total ad valorem tax rate of each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed 

value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall amount to Seven and 
80/100 Dollars ($7.80) and shall consist of the following: 

 
  State of Alabama   $ 0.65 
  Jefferson County    1.35 
  Jefferson County Schools   0.82 
  Special School District Tax   0.96 
  Special School District Tax   0.55 
  General Municipal Purpose Tax  1.96 
  Special Municipal School Tax  1.51 
 
     TOTAL $ 7.80 
 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 5 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills subsequently desired 

to return the millage tax rates that affect the General Fund to those rates in force and 

effective immediately prior to the adoption of Ordinance Number 633 on November 15, 

1982, by reinstating (4.1 mills) forty-one cents on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of 

the assessed value of property so that the rates when adjusted will be as follows: 

1. The 8.23 General Fund Mills (0.823 on each $100.00 of assessed value) be adjusted 
to 10.275 mills (1.0275 on each $100.00 of assessed value). 

 
2. The 8.23 Garbage Collection Fund Mills (0.823 on each $100.00 of assessed value) 

be adjusted to 10.275 mills (1.0275 on each $100.00 of assessed value). 
 
 The total ad valorem tax rate of each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed 

value property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall amount to Eight Dollars and 

21 Cents ($8.21) and shall consist of the following: 

1. State of Alabama:  Sixty-five cents on  each One  $ 0.65 
 Hundred dollars  ($100.00) of assessed value of such property. 
 
2. Jefferson County:  One and  35/100  Dollars on   1.35 
 each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of  the  
 assessed value of such property. 
 
3. Jefferson County Schools:   Eighty-two    cents   0.82 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 
 the assess value of such property. 
 
4. Special School District Tax:   Ninety-six  cents   0.96 
 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 
 the assessed value of such property. 
 
5. Special District Tax:  Fifty-five  cents  on  each   0.55 
 One   Hundred   Dollars    ($100.00)    of    the 
 assessed value of such property. 
 
6. Local General  Municipal  and  Special  Municipal   3.88 
 School  Taxes:   Three   and   88/100 
 Dollars    on   each    One   Hundred   Dollars 
 ($100.00)   of   the   assessed   value  of  such  ___________ 
 property. 
   TOTAL $ 8.21 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 4, 1987, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, approved and adopted Ordinance Number 901, which established the ad valorem 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 6 

 

tax rate of Eight and 21/100 Dollars ($8.21) per One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed 

value as shown in the schedule immediately above; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a referendum was held in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on 

Tuesday, May 8, 1990, at which election the qualified electors of the city voted on the 

following issue: 

TEN AND ONE-HALF MILL TAX INCREASE 
IN VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
FOR PUBLIC SCHOOL PURPOSES 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
 Shall the ad valorem tax presently being levied in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, pursuant to provisions of the Constitution and the laws of the 
State of Alabama, including the election held in the City on April 28, 1970, 
at the rate of One Dollar and Fifty-one Cents on each One Hundred Dollars 
worth of taxable property in the City be increased to the rate of Two Dollars 
and Fifty-six Cents on each One Hundred Dollars worth of taxable property 
in the City (an increase of One Dollar and Five Cents on each One Hundred 
Dollars worth of taxable property, or ten and one-half mills); such additional 
ten and one-half mill tax to be levied and collected for each year beginning 
with the levy for the tax year October 1, 1989, to September, 1990 (the tax 
for which year will be due and payable October 1, 1990) and ending with 
the levy for the tax October 1, 2016, to September 30, 2017 (the tax for 
which year will be due and payable October 1, 2017) and to be used by the 
City Board of Education of the City of Vestavia Hills for public schools 
purposes? 

 
  _____________ For Proposed Taxation 
 
  _____________ Against Proposed Taxation 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

 The majority of the qualified electors voted “For Proposed Taxation”.  The 
specific totals were: 

 
For Proposed Taxation 3,097 
Against Proposed Taxation 3,065 

 
 Following the referendum vote on May 8, 1990, the aggregate ad valorem tax rate 

on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, amounted to Nine and 26/100 Dollars ($9.26) 

and consisted of the following millages: 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 7 

 

1.  State of Alabama   $ 0.650 
2.  Jefferson County    1.350 
3.  Jefferson County Schools   0.820 
4.  Special School District Tax   0.960 
5.  Special School District Tax   0.550 
6.  Local General Municipal Purpose Tax 2.055 
7.  Special Municipal School Tax  2.560 
8.  West Elementary    0.315 
 
     TOTAL $ 9.260 
 
 On August 27, 1991, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, elected to 

renew the 8.2 mill Jefferson County School ad valorem tax. 

 On April 28, 1992, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, elected to 

renew the 5.5 mill Special School District ad valorem tax. 

 On May 3, 1993, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approved 

and adopted Ordinance Number 1353, levying ad valorem taxes at the rate of $9.26 per 

$100.00 of assessed value on real and personal property located within the City for the 

period beginning October 1, 1993, and ending September 30, 1994. 

 On October 26, 1993, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, voted in 

favor of a 9.6 mill increase of the 5.5 mill ad valorem tax (under Section 2 of Amendment 

3, sometimes referred to as Amendment Number 3, Three Mill District Tax) to 15.1 mills. 

 Because of the 9.6 mill increase of the 5.5 mill ad valorem tax to 15.1 mills, the 9.6 

mill ad valorem tax authorized by Amendment Number 82 of the Constitution of the State 

of Alabama was not renewed. 

 On March 11, 2014, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, voted in 

favor of renewing the levy of the said 10.5 mill tax commencing with the tax year for which 

taxes will become due and payable on October 1, 2018 and for each consecutive tax year 

thereafter without limit as to time. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 8 

 

 SECTION ONE - TAX LEVY:   Taxes are hereby levied for the City tax year 

commencing on the first (1st) day of October 2022, on all real and personal property and 

other properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation 

by the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed for 

County taxation, as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year 

ending on the 30th day of September, 2023, as follows: 

A. A tax for general municipal purposes of Two and 37/100 Dollars ($2.37) on each 
One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property. 

 
B. A tax for public school purposes of Two and 56/100 Dollars ($2.56) on each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property. 
 
C. In summary, the aggregate local millage for general municipal purposes and local 

school district tax rates are Four and 93/100 Dollars ($4.93) per One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property. 

 
D. The local millage, for City accounting purposes, shall be allocated as follows: 
 
  General Municipal Purposes   1.0275 
  Garbage Collection    1.0275 
  West Elementary - Warrants     .3150 
  High School and Board Operations  2.5600 
 
      TOTAL 4.9300 
 
 SECTION TWO - SPECIAL DISTRICT TAXES:  In addition to the taxes levied 

in SECTION ONE above, taxes are hereby levied for the City tax year commencing on the 

1st day of October, 2022, on all real and personal property and other properties and 

franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation by the laws of the 

State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed for County taxation, 

as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year ending on the 30th 

day of September, 2023, as follows: 

A. A further tax of One Dollar and Fifty-one Cents ($1.51) of each One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property, in addition to the above 
mentioned taxes to be applied exclusively to public school purposes pursuant to the 
authority conferred by the Constitution and the election held on February 11, 1969; 
renewed on April 28, 1992, and increased to 15.1 mills on October 26, 1993. 

 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 9 

 

B. A further tax of Eighty-two Cents ($0.82) of each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) 
of the assessed value of such property, to be used solely and only for public school 
purposes pursuant to the Constitution of the State of Alabama. 

 
 Should the City Council of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, have no legal authority to 

provide for the levy, assessment and collection of the said Special School District Taxes as 

described in this SECTION TWO, then in such event, this SECTION TWO shall be 

considered as the City’s support of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education. 

 

 SECTION THREE - TAX BASIS AND WHEN DUE:  On and after the 1st day 

of October, 2022, all municipal taxes due the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall be 

based and due on all County assessments of the property within the limits of said County 

for the preceding year, and shall be due and delinquent at the time when State and County 

taxes for the preceding year are due and delinquent. 

 

 SECTION FOUR - EFFECTIVE DATE AND LIEN:  The levy of taxes made 

herein shall go into force and effect as of October 1, 2022, and shall on said date become 

a lien on the property subject thereto. 

 

 SECTION FIVE - TAX ASSESSOR AND TAX COLLECTOR, AND THEIR 

COMPENSATION:  The Tax Assessor and Tax Collector of Jefferson County, Alabama, 

shall be considered to be the Tax Assessor and Tax Collector respectively for the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and shall each receive as compensation for this service in 

assessing and collecting respectively the taxes herein levied, as fee equivalent to one-half 

of one per centum (1/2 of 1%) of the taxes collected and then remitted to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 

 SECTION SIX - CONFLICTS:  That all Ordinances, or parts of Ordinances, 

including Ordinance Number 3096, heretofore, adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, in conflict with the provisions hereof are hereby expressly 

repealed. 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 10 

 

 SECTION SEVEN - SEVERABILITY:  The provisions of this Ordinance are 

hereby declared severable.  Should any provision of this Ordinance be held invalid, the 

invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION EIGHT - INTENT:  It is the intent of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, with the passage of this Ordinance Number 3096, that the aggregate local millage 

for general municipal purposes and local school district tax rates be Four and 93/100 

Dollars ($4.93) per One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property 

and consist of the following: 

 Special High School Tax and Operations  $ 2.560 
 General Municipal Including Garbage   2.055 
 West Elementary        .315 
 
      TOTAL $ 4.930 
 
 It is the further intent that the aggregate ad valorem tax rate of each One Hundred 

Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson 

County, Alabama, shall amount to Nine and 26/100 Dollars ($9.26), which shall consist of 

the following millages: 

1.  State of Alabama   $ 0.650 
2.  Jefferson County    1.350 
3.  Jefferson County Schools   0.820 
4.  Special School District Tax   1.510 
5.  Local General Municipal Purpose Tax 2.055 
6.  Special Municipal School Tax  2.560 
7.  West Elementary    0.315 
 
     TOTAL $ 9.260 
 
 SECTION NINE - TAX ABATEMENT:  Whereas, the City of Vestavia Hills has 

annexed no parcels of land with tax abatements. 

 

 SECTION 10 - EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall become effective 

immediately upon its adoption and approval and is adopted and approved all in accordance 

with Title 11-51-40, et seq., Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 



Ordinance Number 3096 
Page 11 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3096 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of April, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3097 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3097 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR LEVYING OF MUNICIPAL 
TAXES FOR THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AND 
FOR ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION THEREOF IN SHELBY 
COUNTY. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

SECTION ONE - TAX LEVY:  Taxes are levied for the City tax year 

commencing on the first (1st) day of October, 2022, on all real and personal property and 

other properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation 

by the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed for 

State taxation as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year ending 

during the preceding year, as follows: 

A. A tax for general municipal purposes of Two and 37/100 Dollars ($2.37) on each

One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of value of such property;

B. A tax for Public School purposes of Two and 56/100 Dollars ($2.56) on each One

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of value of such property;

C. In summary, the aggregate local millage for general Municipal purposes and

Municipal School tax rates are Four and 93/100 Dollars ($4.93) per One Hundred

($100.00) of the value of such property;

D. The local millage for the City’s accounting purposes shall be allocated as follows:

General Municipal Purposes 1.0275 
Garbage Collection 1.0275 
West Elementary Warrants 0.3150 
High School and Board Operations 2.5600 

Total 4.9300 

SECTION TWO - SHELBY TAX LEVY:  Taxes are hereby levied by 

the Shelby County Commission §40-7-42, Code of Alabama, 1975 for the City tax year 

commencing on the first day of October, 2022, on all real and personal property and other 

properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation by the 

laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed for County 



Ordinance Number 3097 
Page 2 

 

taxation, as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year ending on 

the 30th day of September, 2023, as follows: 

A. A tax of Fifty Cents ($0.50) on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the value 

of such property for general fund purposes; 

B. A tax of One Dollar and Sixty Cents ($1.60) on each One Hundred Dollars 

($100.00) of the value of such property for school districts; 

C. A tax of Twenty-five Cents ($0.25) for each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the 

value of such property for roads and bridges; 

D. In summary, the aggregate County millage for general purposes, countywide school 

taxes, and road and bridges is Two and 35/100 Dollars ($2.35) per One Hundred 

Dollars ($100.00) of the value of such property. 

  It is the further intent that the aggregate ad valorem tax rate of each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Shelby County, Alabama, should amount to Seven and 93/100 Dollars ($7.93) which shall 

consist of the following millages: 

  State of Alabama    0.650 
  Shelby County     0.500 
  Shelby County School Countywide  1.600 
  Shelby County Road and Bridge  0.250 
  General Municipal Purpose Tax  2.055 
  Special Municipal School Tax  2.560 
  West Elementary Warrants   0.315 
 
      Total  7.930 
 

 SECTION THREE - TAX BASIS AND WHEN DUE:  On and after the 1st day 

of October, 2022, all municipal taxes due the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall be 

based and due on all County assessments of the property within the limits of said County 

for the preceding year, and shall be due and delinquent at the time when State and County 

taxes for the preceding year are due and delinquent. 

 

 SECTION FOUR - EFFECTIVE DATE AND LIEN:  The levy of taxes made 

herein shall go into force and effect as of October 1, 2022, and shall on said date become 

a lien on the property subject thereto. 



Ordinance Number 3097 
Page 3 

 

 

 SECTION FIVE - TAX ASSESSOR AND TAX COLLECTOR, AND THEIR 

COMPENSATION:  The Tax Assessor and Tax Collector of Shelby County, Alabama, 

shall be considered to be the Tax Assessor and Tax Collector respectively for the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and shall each receive as compensation for this service in 

assessing and collecting respectively the taxes herein levied, as fee equivalent to one-half 

of one per centum (1/2 of 1%) of the taxes collected and then remitted to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 

 SECTION SIX - CONFLICTS:  That all Ordinances, or parts of Ordinances, 

including Ordinance Number 3097, heretofore, adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, in conflict with the provisions hereof are hereby expressly 

repealed. 

 

  SEVERABILITY:  The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared 

severable.  Should any provision of this Ordinance be held invalid, the invalidity thereof 

shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately 

upon its adoption and approval. 

 

  ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 25th day of April, 2022. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 3097 
Page 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3097 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 25th day of April, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 
 
 


	2022_0428CC_A
	Minutes 04 11
	Ordinance 3089
	Ordinance 3090
	Ordinance 3091
	Ordinance 3092
	Ordinance 3093
	Ordinance 3094
	Resolution 5386
	Resolution 5387
	Ordinance 3096
	Ordinance 3097



